# Town of Nantucket NANTUCKET MEMORIAL AIRPORT

14 Airport Road Nantucket Island, Massachusetts 02554

Thomas M. Rafter, A.A.E., Airport Manager Phone: (508) 325-5300

Fax: (508) 325-5306



Commissioners
Daniel W. Drake, Chairman
Arthur D. Gasbarro, Vice Chair
Andrea N. Planzer
Neil Planzer
Jeannette D. Topham

#### **DRAFT**

#### AIRPORT COMMISSION MEETING

#### May 13, 2014

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 PM by Acting Chairman Arthur D. Gasbarro with the following Commissioners present, Andrea N. Planzer, Neil Planzer and Jeanette D. Topham.

Daniel W. Drake participated remotely due to geographical distance.

The meeting took place in the 1<sup>st</sup> Floor meeting room at the Public Safety Facility, 4 Fairgrounds Rd.

Airport employees present were Thomas M. Rafter, Airport Manager, David Sylvia, Training & Compliance Officer, Jamie Miller, Business/Finance Manager, Noah Karberg, Environmental Coordinator, Lara Hanson, Operations Superintendent and Janine Torres, Office Manager.

Mr. Gasbarro announced the meeting was being recorded.

Mr. Gasbarro asked for comments on the Agenda. Hearing none the Agenda was approved.

Ms. Topham made a **Motion** to approve the 4/22/14 Minutes. **Second** by Ms. Planzer and **Passed** by the following roll-call vote:

Mr. Drake – Aye

Mr. Gasbarro – Aye

Ms. Planzer – Aye

Mr. Planzer – Aye

Ms. Topham – Aye

Mr. Gasbarro noted the 5/6/14 Minutes are still pending.

Mr. Gasbarro asked for comments or questions on the 5/7/14 Warrant. Hearing none, the Warrant was ratified.

#### **Public Comment**

None.

## **Pending Leases & Contracts**

Mr. Gasbarro reviewed the list of pending contracts:

- **Kevin Conrad Heating & Cooling Inc.**, for \$31,400, to repair ARFF HVAC system coil and add anti-freeze noting an insurance claim is pending.
- **Baynes & Jones Electrical Supply**, for \$4,154, for replacement parts for South Ramp lights.
- Sherwin Industries for \$24,660, for Type III glass beads required for airfield painting.
- **Schmidt Equipment**, \$70,000, for a compact track loader, approved for 80% MassDOT reimbursement if delivered before 6/30/14.
- **Schmidt Equipment,** \$271,085, new loader, eligible for 80% MassDOT reimbursement, but declined. Mr. Rafter to inquire further as to why.
- MHQ Supply, \$63,000, for F350 pick-up and skid mounted tank, approved for 80% MassDOT reimbursement if delivered before 6/30/14. Ms. Planzer asked why the three equipment contracts are dated July 1<sup>st</sup>, yet delivery is scheduled prior. Mr. Rafter explained these are FY15 Capital Purchases, yet for grant eligibility, delivery was required by June 30<sup>th</sup>.
- World Fuel Services Mr. Rafter explained extensive comments were received from legal which need to be discussed with World Fuel. Therefore this contract which includes fuel supply, truck leases and a branding agreement should be tabled.

Ms. Planzer made a **Motion** to accept all pending contracts as listed on Exhibit 1 except for the World Fuel Contract. **Second** by Mr. Planzer and **Passed** by the following roll-call vote:

Mr. Drake – Aye Mr. Gasbarro – Aye Ms. Planzer – Aye Mr. Planzer – Aye Ms. Topham – Aye

## 042214-2 Formerly Used Defense Site (FUDS) Status

Mr. Rafter reported receiving, through G.J. Smith, the Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) delineated boundaries of the MRS two acres site. The Corps has been asked to state, in a formal letter, that the Airport will not be at risk of assuming responsibility of the entire site should it allow development adjacent to the MRS site. The Corps has agreed to submit a letter. Mr. Rafter added Legal Counsel is still concerned.

Mr. Drake asked if Mr. Smith's pending lot is within the delineated boundaries. Mr. Rafter responded it does not appear to be.

Mr. Drake added if the dirt pile in which the munition was found was moved from within the delineated boundaries. Mr. Rafter responded it was. Mr. Rafter added asking the Corps specifically if the Corps is certain there are no munitions outside of the two-acre site. The Corps responded they were fairly certain because the site was used as a munition dump and not a bombing range.

After brief discussion over concerns of how the boundaries were determined as well as Mr. Smith's willingness to perhaps accept some responsibility should his pending lease move forward, it was determined to wait and see what the Corps states in their letter.

## **Pending Matters**

**070913-1 TON Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Update** – Mr. Rafter indicated no change in status as the wait for the TON to finalize their new policy.

**022613-2 Master Plan & Sustainability Program** – Mr. Rafter noted receiving updated traffic numbers comparing the ferry vs. air traffic. Jacob assures they will be included in the final report. Mr. Drake interjected he had supplied Jacobs with the Steamship's traffic numbers for years ending December 2012 and 2013, pointing out to them those numbers bore no relation to the numbers Jacobs used in their report. Mr. Drake added his concern over Jacobs' use of incorrect numbers as well as their indifference as how this could affect the financial forecast. Mr. Drake suggests the Commission should instruct Jacobs to revise the financial forecast portion of the Master Plan accordingly.

Discussion moved to the role the Commissions should take during the Master Plan process resulting in the decision to hold a workshop prior to the next scheduled Commission meeting and invite the lead consultant, Bill Richardson, from Jacobs to attend.

Mr. Rafter reported proceeding with the alternatives analysis portion of the Master Plan, which included a meeting with Jacobs and Andrew Vorce of the Town Planning & Land Use office. Additionally, a meeting is scheduled with the FAA on Thursday to review the same subject matter prior to taking it to the Advisory Group.

Mr. Drake noted the terminal facility needs being reviewed as part of the Master Plan are geared toward secured flights. Mr. Drake suggested discussing the future of the air taxis at the Master Plan update meeting with the FAA on Thursday. After brief discussion, Mr. Rafter noted he would make mention of the decrease in the Hyannis enplanements but noted the purpose of the Master Plan facility needs is to address the existing deficiencies.

Before concluding the subject, Mr. Gasbarro noted the related materials included in the packet as a follow up to the May 6<sup>th</sup> Special Commission Meeting including a link to the Transportation Planning page of the Town's website, e-mail correspondence between Mr. Drake and Barnstable Airport Manager Bud Breault regarding the potential new fast ferry; e-mail correspondence between Mr. Drake and MassDOT–Aeronautics Administrator, Chris Willenborg, also regarding the potential new fast ferry.

**051314-1 Consideration of New Administrative Position** – Mr. Rafter requested permission to add an administrative staff position to assist the Office Manager in her many duties, noting the job description is still in draft form.

Mr. Planzer made a **Motion** to grant authority to the Airport Manager to hire a position as described. **Second** by Ms. Topham.

During discussion Mr. Drake agreed the work load is excessive and supports having trained backup as good business practice. When asked, Mr. Rafter noted it would be a full-time, 40 hours per week position that may or may not be in the union. Mr. Gasbarro asked for a roll-call vote:

Mr. Drake – Aye

Mr. Gasbarro – Aye

Ms. Planzer – Ave

Mr. Planzer – Aye

Ms. Topham - Aye

# Manager's Report

**Project Updates** – Mr. Rafter reported:

- R/W 15/33 REILS and PAPI's installation should be completed this week.
- The VASI's were removed from R/W 6 causing the runway to be close briefly forcing traffic to R/W 15/33
- The FAA's has indicated our PFC application should be reviewed by the end of the week. If approved, PFC collections can begin July 1<sup>st</sup>, after the airlines are notified.
- Two FAA Grant awards are anticipated for the ARFF vehicle as well as the Security
  Upgrades project. Both projects were put out to bid and bids came in under budget.
  Congressman Keating is expected on-island Friday and may be making an announcement
  regarding those Grants. When asked, Mr. Rafter explained the ARFF truck accessories
  not eligible for FAA reimbursement were taken out of the bid package and will be bid
  separately. Inquiries into State reimbursement possibilities will be made.

## **RFP Bid Status** – Mr. Rafter reported:

• The ATCT RFQ – Jacobs, working from its Virginia office, were selected as the design firm. A pre-planning meeting conference call was held with Jacobs and the FAA and a design charrette is planned on site June 11<sup>th</sup> and 12<sup>th</sup>. The schedule indicates the temporary control tower will be utilized into the summer months of 2015diminishing commercial ramp space.

## **Operations** – Mr. Rafter reported:

- Master Lease Agreements were recently reviewed by Legal Counsel and will be going out to the airlines.
- Seasonal employees are starting and are undergoing training.
- A crack sealing MassDOT-Aeronautics project is underway which will be followed by runway painting. Mr. Gasbarro suggests a letter of thanks be sent.
- JetBlue starts service on May 15<sup>th</sup>.
- A special event permit has been granted for May 16<sup>th</sup> in Hangar 4 as part of the Wine Festival events.
- Miami Air has a 737 charter flight coming in May 23<sup>rd</sup> through the 26<sup>th</sup>.
- An MD83 charter request is being considered for June 26<sup>th</sup> through the 29<sup>th</sup>. If space doesn't allow, they will instructed to drop and go.
- Work is continuing on Hangar 7, formerly the Taylor hangar now Marine Lumber hangar.
- A handout of the Town's Proposed Classification Plan Grade Level Characteristics Chart in conjunction with the compensation study establishing salary levels was reviewed. The Commission needs to decide whether the Airport should be included in the plan; whether the consultant to give a separate briefing to the Commission or held jointly with the BOS at their June 11<sup>th</sup> workshop. Mr. Rafter added the challenge to this is the highly technical skills of several airport positions are not similar to other Town Departments. After brief discussion the consensus was to have a separate meeting with the consultant and make a decision after that.
- The Part 139 Airport Certification Inspection is taking place June 3<sup>rd</sup> through 5<sup>th</sup>. Nantucket Airport is required to be a Part 139 Airport due to scheduled air carriers having more than 9 seats.

## **Staff Update**

Mr. Rafter welcomed Jamie Miller, the new Business/Finance Manager to the Staff.

#### **Sub-Committee Reports**

Mr. Gasbarro reported the **Energy & Environmental Sub-Committee** met to bring Mr. Planzer up-to-date on the mowing, obligations pertaining to our environmental permits and noise. The minutes shall be forthcoming and can be reviewed at a future meeting. Mr. Planzer noted the meeting was well done, Mr. Karberg was well prepared and thanked everyone involved.

#### **Commissioner's Comments**

Ms. Topham suggested talking to the airlines regarding their higher ticket prices. Mr. Rafter noted there are several elements that factor in on ticket prices. Destination, airline equipment, fuel and overhead for example. Mr. Rafter indicated the Master Plan will include financial benchmarking which will show the cost to the airline per passenger on various routes, noting this information will be very helpful. Mr. Drake added \$14 dollars of every ticket to Hyannis is taxes; (Before the ACK PFC) whereas \$.50 of every steamship ticket is taxes. The other factor is the economics of running a 9 passenger airplane are different than running a 300 passenger boat.

Mr. Gasbarro commented he learned a lot at the May 6<sup>th</sup> meeting regarding the relationship between the Steamship and Hy-Line.

#### **Public Comment**

None.

Having no further business, Ms. Topham made a **Motion** to adjourn. **Second** by Ms. Planzer and **Passed** by the following roll-call vote:

Mr. Drake - Aye

Mr. Gasbarro - Aye

Ms. Planzer – Aye

Mr. Planzer - Aye

Ms. Topham – Aye

Meeting adjourned at 6:16 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Janine M. Torres Recorder

Master List of Documents Used

5/13/14 Agenda including Exhibit 1

4/22/14 Draft Airport Commission Minutes

5/7/14 Warrant Commission Approval Sheet

Kevin Conrad Heating & Cooling Contract for ARFF Repair

Baynes & Jones Electric Supply Contract for Ramp Light Parts

Sherwin Industries Contract for Type III Glass Beads

Schmidt Equipment Contract for Compact Track Loader

Schmidt Equipment Contract for Loader

MHQ Supply Contract for Pick-Up/Skid Mounted Tank

5/8/14 E-Mail from Gasbarro to Drake/Rafter re Transportation Planning

5/7/14 E-Mail String between Drake/Breault re Proposed Ferry Schedule Change

5/9/14 E-Mail String between Drake/Willenborg re Fast Ferry

5/9/14 Letter from Breault to Steamship Authority

Town of Nantucket Proposed Classification Plan Grade Level Characteristic Chart

# **Janine Torres**

From:

Daniel W. Drake <ddrake@ackguack.com>

Sent:

Monday, June 09, 2014 4:06 PM

To:

Janine Torres

Cc:

Tom Rafter; Noah Karberg

Subject:

FW: Island Air Caravans on the old water tower route

Janine, please share this and Mr. Johnson's letter with the Commission

Daniel W. Drake PO Box 194 Nantucket, MA 02554

Office: 508-325-7753 Home: 508-228-4833 Cell: 508-221-0770

----Original Message----

From: Lee Dunn [mailto:lhdunn@comcast.net]

Sent: Monday, June 09, 2014 10:24 AM

To: ddrake@ackquack.com

Cc: Dunn Tharon

Subject: Island Air Caravans on the old water tower route

Hi Dan.

Tharon and I have lived at 74 Millbrook Road, near the Head of Hummock Pond, for nearly forty years. This was a very quiet and peaceful location in the seventies and and early eighties as was most of out-of-town Nantucket. As I am sure you recall, because of the dramatic increase in air taxi service and the corresponding concern over air noise in town in the mid eighties, an abbreviated FAR Part 150 study was done and a new "water tower" route was implemented. Most of the Hyannis traffic began to follow this water tower to Miacomet corridor, and the acoustic lives of those of us living below gradually became a nightmare. By the early nineties, there were many days in the summer when we were almost never out of earshot of low-lying 402s.

As one droned away, another would take its place on the opposite horizon.

It was torture to sit outside on a summer afternoon.

In the early nineties, after much complaining and agitating by those of us under this route as well as from other locations on island that had also experienced increased air noise, a new FAR Part 150 study was undertaken at great taxpayer expense. It was a fairly painful, contentious, and drawn out affair ("I love airplane noise" bumper stickers appeared island wide), though Dan Wolf was a gratifyingly enlightened participant in the process.

When it concluded, the town and the airport did move into a new, more air noise conscious era. Voluntary noise abatement procedures were adopted, and the airport became more responsive to complaints. The island gradually became a quieter place, and the quality of life under the "water tower"

route was considerably improved on most days.

It is with dismay that we note that Island Air appears to fly its new Caravans over this route with impunity, regardless of weather conditions or time of day. They are not as snarly and obnoxious as the 402s, but on some days they start at around 6AM and appear every 15-20 minutes or so all day long. Last year I filled out the online complaint form a couple of times, and left messages at the air noise hotline, but heard nothing back. I did speak with Noah recently, who allowed that there was possibly a "single engine exemption" from noise abatement procedures that Island Air was utilizing, and that it might be most effective to contact the Airport Commission and/or attend a meeting to get an answer. I also note that this is an agenda item for your meeting tomorrow?

Sorry to belabor a history and an issue with which you are no doubt very familiar, but I would appreciate direction on how to best address this concern.

Thanks,

Lee Dunn 508-228-1382

# John G. Johnson 53 West Miacomet Road Nantucket Island MA 02554-4368

508-228-5044

Kantucket Airport Commission June 9. 2014 Mr. Tom Kaster, Arkport Manager my name is John Johnson and as a homeowner under Island Cir prefered flight path that does not follow The perseiled voise abatement pracedeure, I am writing to object the fact that they secreve a 15% relate on landing fles when they do not abicle by the program that was implemented by the anjost Commusion & reward those airlines that do follow the sule. Island this when landing on six Hay low loud sight over the west Miacomes nelgaborhood starting at 628 Am, 6 44 Am, 733 Am 75 AM, 8 " AM, Continuing throng art Reday, and get They receive a 15% Refund, Thus getting endie for oflying the noise abatement route that they do not follow. The single engine excemption closs not hold up to this financial receases and support by the airport. bland air President Tom Cumminghan told the Cerminisum Hal his companies passenger counts were down nearly a third in The first quarter of the year. The reason is simple, he does not bottom the personibes moise abatement soutes so we do not by his surfine. The woned is out and the mon people take the fast boot, the more they realize how easy it is to boat to Ayamin with out the bravel of the airport, By taking the boar or get to say to Mr. Cumninghan, Det with The program Now wet need the awyord Communic to top sewarding Island and Mr Cummyhanfer his last be havever Please support us in gilling 1A to Comply withthe route that a vast mjartyst plane, including singe Engin planes do Fortino.

-----Original Message-----

From: Daniel W Drake [mailto:ddrake@ackquack.com]

Sent: Tuesday, June 03, 2014 2:39 PM

To: Bill Richardson

Cc: Tom Rafter; Janine Torres

Subject: ACK Master Plan traffic forecast

Bill,

I learned from Tom this morning that he was also unaware that FAA approval was being sought for the traffic forecast numbers for the Master Plan until Lisa Lesperance told him that the forecast had been approved.

Speaking only for myself as an individual Commissioner and not for the whole Commission, but also exercising my prerogative as Chairman, it was out of order for the forecast numbers to be presented to the FAA before they were reviewed and approved by the Commission. As you know, they were not shown to the Commission until last week, considerably after "the horse got out of the barn."

To compound the problem, as we now know, the data on which the forecasts were based was inaccurate, to put it mildly.

Can you give me written assurance that you stand by the forecast even in the face of the more pronounced downward trend in ACK-HYA traffic shown by the correct numbers.

This only serves to increase my disappoint in the way Jacobs has handled the master plan process.

Dan

Sent from my iPad

# MUNIS

Org#	Object #		FY14 Period 11	_
65482 27482	42000:49999 42451	Operating Revenue Fuel Revenue Total Revenue	\$ 6,139,477.82 \$ 5,195,336.00 \$ 11,334,813.82	-
65482 65482 27482	52000:59999 51000:51999 54102	Operating Expenses S&W Expenses Fuel Expenses Total Expenses	\$ 3,277,313.72 \$ 3,541,957.53 \$ 4,199,222.68 \$ 11,018,493.93	<del></del>
		P/L	\$ 316,319.89	
		Subsidy	\$ 304,598.00	
		True P/L	\$ 11,721.89	

Does not include encumberances